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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed
to accommodate companies to which a high
investment risk may be attached. In particular,
companies may list on GEM with neither a track
record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast
future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks
arising out of the emerging nature of companies
listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated

investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market

in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination
on GEM is publication on the Internet website
operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies
are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that
they need to have access to the GEM website at
www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date

information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Financial

Highlights

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated accounts of iSteelAsia Holdings Limited (the
"Company” or "iSteelAsia"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or “iSteelAsia Group”) for the
respective years as hereunder stated.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

Years ended 31st March
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Turnover 183,329 428,345 811,142 1,429,443 859,685
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (112,034) (18,811) 8,464 (25,042) (4,497)
Taxation (20) 1,472 (1,840) (889) (5,946)

(Loss)/Profit after taxation but

before minority interests (112,054) (17.339) 6,624 (25,931) (10,443)
Minority interests — (1) (34) 220 —
(Loss)/Profit attributable to shareholders (112,054) (17,340) 6,590 (25,711) (10,443)
Notes:

1. No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company since its incorporation.
2. The consolidated profit and loss account of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2001 was prepared on the

assumption that the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout that year.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at 31st March
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

Fixed assets 3,223 2,306 3,230 2,922 1,41
Website development costs 3,788 2,165 918 43 21
Long-term investments 24,974 28,201 685 2,136 780
Deferred tax assets — — — 4,483 —
Current assets 66,302 194,354 333,885 377,603 163,536
Current liabilities (74,573) (215,660) (324,033) (374,542) (163,611)
Net assets 23,714 11,366 14,685 12,645 2,137

Capital and reserves:

Share capital 145,450 156,450 156,450 159,638 159,659
Reserves 2,700 (4,608) (7913) 13,904 13,818
Accumulated losses (124,436) (141,776) (135,186) (160,897) (171,340)
Shareholders' equity 23,714 10,066 13,351 12,645 2,137
Minority interests — 1,300 1,334 — —

23,714 11,366 14,685 12,645 2,137
Note:

1. The consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31st March 2001 was prepared on the assumption that the current
structure of the Group had been in existence throughout that year.
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hairman’s
tatement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby
present the audited consolidated results of
iSteelAsia Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
"iSteelAsia") and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group" or "iSteelAsia Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2005.

During the year, turnover of the Group decreased
when compared to the corresponding periods in
last year. Such decline in turnover is principally
due to the lasting adverse effect of the PRC
central government’s continuous austerity policies
to limit the excessive investments in several
overheated industries including the steel,
aluminum, automobile and cement industries as
well as the real estate sector. Despite such
adverse conditions, the Group was able to achieve
an increase in gross margin primarily due to the
successful implementation of efforts in focusing
the Group's resources to selected higher margin
products. The Group has continued to service its
ultimate customer base through being an efficient
supply chain provider. We believe that efficient
sales channels and lowering costs can raise the
Group's competitiveness and enhance its
profitability. To achieve these goals, we have
implemented some measures that include
focusing our sales network, strengthening its
distribution efficiency, enhancing the control of
operating costs and improving the quality of
customer services to suit the needs of the new
and old customers. These have created a good

foundation for the long-term development of the
Group while efforts will also be invested to
reinforce and leverage the well-established
connection with our suppliers and customers.
Although we have a tough year in 2004/2005, we
will continue our best to focus on improving the
cost efficiency and effectiveness of the Company's
businesses. Our ultimate goal is to generate better
returns to our shareholders.

This is the fifth annual report of the Company
since the listing of iSteelAsia on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange in April 2000. The financial year
ended 31st March 2005 was a challenging year
for the Group. Despite the introduction of
macroeconomic controls and higher interest rates
during the year to rein in the pace of growth, the
PRC economy has shown few signs of easing,
expanding at a brisk rate of 9.5% in the first
quarter of 2005. The Company experienced many
challenges during the year under review, like price
volatility and wunanticipated macro-control
measures, coupled with an interest rate uptrend.
The management has initiated and will continue
efforts to address these external challenges, and
try to identify and execute the right strategy.

OUTLOOK

As stated before, given the current difficult
operating environment coupled with an interest
rate uptrend, there is an imminent need for the
Company to strengthen its financial positions,
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including its balance sheet and cash flows, and
also explore additional business models to
enhance the revenue base of the Group thus
maximising return to the shareholders. The board
of iSteelAsia has seriously considered certain fund
raising exercises and introducing new strategic
partners. We are of the view that such exercise
would improve the Group’s balance sheet and
financial position and in addition allow the Group
to leverage the experience and resources of the
new coming strategic partner to strengthen the
Group's business prospects by exploring new
investment opportunities so as to put the
Company in a much more sound position to meet
different challenges in future. As of the date of
this statement, we are pleased to report that on
19th May 2005, the Group entered into an
agreement with a group of strategic investors with
respect to a cash investment and strategic
partnership. With reference to the announcement
made by the Group dated 19th May 2005, the
consortiums of the investors (the “Investors”) are
North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp. and Mr.
Moses Kwok Tai Tsang. The series of transactions
which are inter-conditional of one another involve
a capital reorganisation of the Company’s existing
shares, an open offer to the Company’s registered
shareholders as of the date of close of register, a
subscription of new shares, and a convertible bond
by the Investors. Subject to the approvals by the
regulators and the Company's shareholders, this
series of transactions when completed will

enhance the Company’s cash position by more
than HK$30 million, with the Investors becoming
the majority shareholder of the Company. The
management of the Company believes the
exercise is beneficial to the Company in the long
run, as it will substantially enhance the Company’s
financial position, coupled with the opportunity
to leverage off the expertise of a very seasoned
and well connected group of international
professional investors and managers. Accordingly,
all shareholders are advised to carefully review
all relevant announcements and information made
by the Company. The Company will use its best
effort to release the materials to the shareholders
as timely as practicable.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to our worldwide
suppliers and customers for their trust and support
in our products and services throughout the years.
| also wish to take this opportunity to offer my
appreciation to our shareholders for their
confidence in iSteelAsia, as well as our staff for
their dedication and diligence. From such
overwhelming commitment, we will continue to
pace our efforts towards the long-term
development of iSteelAsia.

Andrew Cho Fai Yao
Chairman
9th June 2005
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{Management

Discussion

and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
The management of iSteelAsia Holdings Limited
(the "Company” or “iSteelAsia”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or
"iSteelAsia Group”) reports its annual results for
the financial year ended 31st March 2005. For
the year ended 31st March 2005, the iSteelAsia
Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$860 million, representing a 40% decrease by
comparing the results in last year.

For the year under review, the iSteelAsia Group
recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$10,443,000, an approximately
59% decline from last financial year’s loss figure
of approximately HK$25,711,000. However, on a
closer analysis of the figures, the iSteelAsia
Group's performance of its core trading operations
as represented by the operating loss of
HK$352,000 (after excluding the gain on disposal
of investments, net of approximately HK$911,000)
for the year reflected a reduction in profit of
approximately HK$3,646,000 as compared to the
similar figure of approximately HK$3,294,000
(after excluding the impairment loss of an
investment of approximately HK$20,414,000) for
the previous year ended 31st March 2004. This

weakening of operational profitability was mainly
due to the continued challenging operating
environment caused by the volatility in the steel
prices and the selective austerity measures
implemented by the PRC Central government
during the financial year. Under such
circumstances, the management proactively
implemented efforts in consolidating the Group’s
limited financial resources to focus more on the
selected higher margin steel products and
selected geographic areas that could have brought
greater returns. During the year under review, the
Group has consolidated the coverage of the
Beijing and Tianjin markets with its Shanghai office
through the exiting of the two local offices there.
The result of these efforts could be evidenced
from the fact that, despite the decrease in
turnover, the gross margin for the year increased
33% to approximately 3.6% by comparing the
previous year's gross margin of 2.7%. On the
investment front, the Group has also divested
various investments including the receiving of the
initial invested capital from its investment in
Stemcor Holdings Limited (“Stemcor”), and also
divested its investment in AcrossAsia Limited
(formerly known as AcrossAsia Multimedia
Limited), and reallocating these capitals for its
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core operations. At the same time, in light of the

poor market condition and the risks so associated
with, the management of the iSteelAsia Group
has also taken a prudent review on the carrying
value of its assets and the operations and made
necessary provisions for diminution in value
relating to inventories, receivables, deferred tax
assets and deposits in dispute amounting to
approximately HK$9,889,000. Such provisions
have been made on a conservative scenario basis.

In the meantime, the management of the Group
successfully made its efforts in optimising
resources for the economy of scale to achieve
business growth over the year. It was mainly done
through decreasing total cost excluding cost of
inventories sold and finance costs (“Operating
Cost”) from approximately HK$36,573,000 in last
year to approximately HK$32,633,000 this year,
representing a decrease of about 11% over the
same period. Although turnover decreased,
interest expense from the year amounts to
approximately HK$5,056,000 representing
approximately 0.59% of the turnover, while
interest expense represented only 0.55% of the
turnover for the previous financial year due to an
increasing interest rate.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31st March 2005, the iSteelAsia Group's
aggregate short-term bank borrowings, comprising
trust receipts bank loans and short-term working
capital bank loans, were approximately
HK$24,360,000 (2004: HK$51,426,000). The short-
term working capital bank loans amounted to
approximately HK$21,735,000 (2004:
HK$24,570,000) with interest rates ranging from
5.5% to 5.6% per annum (2004: 4.5% to 5.4%
per annum). As at 31st March 2005, the gearing
ratio (short-term bank borrowings divided by the
shareholders’ equity) was approximately 11.40
(2004: 4.07). The alarmingly large jump (180%) in
the gearing ratio reflects the Group has
significantly increased its leverage during the year
under review. Although short-term bank
borrowings has decreased resulting from a
decrease in the Group's inventory level, it is still
not sufficient to compensate for the Group's
decrease in its equity value. The decrease in
equity value caused by the Group’s losses over
the years, coupled with the macro sentiment of
an increasingly risky profile for the volatile steel
sector has prompted a tightening of banking
resources available to the Group. As at 31st March
2005, the iSteelAsia Group had aggregated
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banking facilities of approximately HK$88,125,000
(2004: HK$159,155,000) derived mainly from
several banks for overdrafts, loans, and trade
financing. Unused facilities as at the same date
amounted to approximately HK$63,765,000 (2004
HK$69,691,000). These facilities were secured by
(a) corporate guarantees provided by iSteelAsia
and/or (b) the iSteelAsia Group's inventories held
under trust receipts bank loan arrangement and
pledged bank deposits.

In addition to the above said banking facilities,
the Group also relies substantively from its largest
shareholder — Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited
("VSC") (Stock code: 1001) together with its
subsidiaries (“the VSC Group”) by leveraging off
the VSC Group’'s aggregate purchasing power.
Using the VSC Group as a supplier to the Group,
the Company is able to enjoy much more favorable
terms from the steel mills. As of the financial
year end of 2004/05, the Group had outstanding
balance due to the VSC Group in excess of
HK$118,000,000 (2003/04: in excess of
HK$205,000,000).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31st March 2005, bank deposits of
approximately HK$16,080,000 (2004:
HK$34,439,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities.

As at 31st March 2005, the iSteelAsia Group's
cash and bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$29,343,000 (2004:
HK$89,872,000), of which approximately
HK$11,701,000 was denominated in Renminbi and
deposited with the banks in China.

INVESTMENTS
During the year, investments comprised equity
interests in Stemcor.

Under a share subscription agreement with
Stemcor, Stemcor has granted the iSteelAsia
Group a put option under which the iSteelAsia
Group may require Stemcor to repurchase all of
the shares subscribed by the iSteelAsia Group
for HK$23,400,000 (equivalent to US$3,000,000).
The put option will be exercisable by the iSteelAsia
Group no earlier than the date on which the
amount of shareholders’ equity of Stemcor falls
below £15,000,000 as shown in the management
accounts of Stemcor from time to time or 30th
April 2002, whichever is earlier, and no later than
31st October 2002 according to the Put Option
Agreement. The due date for exercising the put
option has been extended from 31st October 2002
to 31st October 2003 and further to 31st October
2004. At 13th May 2004, the iSteelAsia Group
exercised its put option to sell its 3.5% equity
interest in Stemcor for HK$23,400,000 which was
satisfied by a nine-month promissory note issued
by Stemcor. Subsequently, the promissory note
was realised at the maturity date on 1st March
2005.

During the year ended 31st March 2005, the
iSteelAsia Group had received dividend income
of approximately HK$659,000 (2004: HK$421,000)
from Stemcor. The return on investment was
approximately 2.82% (2004: 1.80%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The foreign currency exposure of the iSteelAsia
Group is mainly driven by its business operations.
The sales receipts are collected in Renminbi,
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars,
mainly depending on the locations of the
customers. On the other hand, the steel products
purchases are mainly denominated in United
States dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, with a
comparatively minimal fluctuation in exchange
rates between United States dollars with




iSteelAsia Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2004/05

Management Discussion and Analysis

Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, the iSteelAsia
Group considers the foreign currency exposure is
minimal for the year under review. The iSteelAsia
Group will continue to exert efforts in managing
its potential currency risk profile in the future.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31st March 2005, the iSteelAsia Group
employed 42 (2004: 80) staff. Salaries and annual
bonuses are determined according to positions
and performance of the employees. The iSteelAsia
Group provides on-the-job training and training
subsidies to its employees in addition to pension
schemes and medical insurance. Total staff costs
including contribution to retirement benefit
schemes incurred during the year under review
amounted to approximately HK$9,416,000 (2004
HK$15,232,000).

On 10th June 2002, the Company adopted an
employee share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) under which the Company’'s Board of
Directors may at its discretion offer stock option
to any employee/agent/consultant or
representative, including any executive or non-
executive director, of any member of the Group
or any other person who satisfies the selection
criteria as set out in the New Scheme. The
principal purposes of the New Scheme are to
provide incentives to participants to contribute to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and/or to retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group.
The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date (i.e. 10th June 2002). No options were
granted under the New Scheme up to the date of
this report. The New Scheme was adopted to
replace the previous old scheme, with all options
granted under the old scheme continue to be
exercisable in accordance with the old terms.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
(by Quarter)

HK$'000
2,000 T

1,000 T
. *

-1,000 +
-2,000 +

-3,000 +

-4,000 +

-5,000 +

-6,000

-7,000 +

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

* The amount does not include the gain on disposal of
investment, net of approximately HK$911,000.




Directors’ Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (As at 31st March 2005)

Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao

Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao, aged 39, is the Chairman of the Board. He primarily focuses on formulating
strategic business alliances for the Group. He has been with the Group since the formal establishment of
the trading operation in April 1997 He graduated from the University of California, Berkeley with a
bachelor degree in finance and obtained a master of business administration degree from the Harvard
University Graduate School of Business Administration. Mr. Yao has extensive experience in the steel
trading business and is the chairman of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (“VSC”). He serves as a
member of Hong Kong Housing Society and the chairman of the construction material for Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. He also sits on the Shanghai People's Political Consultative Conference, deputy
chairman of Shanghai Youths Federation, deputy chairman of the Hong Kong United Youth Association
Limited and director of the Shanghai Fudan University.

Mr. Desmond Hay Ching Fu

Mr. Desmond Hay Ching Fu, aged 49, is a Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. He
joined the Group in May 2000 and is now responsible for managing the Group's operations. Mr. Fu has
over 20 years of experience in China related steel business and investment with several multi-national
steel companies including British Steel Corporation (now known as Corus), TradeArbed (now known as
Arcelor) and Fletcher Challenge (the biggest private company in New Zealand). Mr. Fu holds a bachelor
degree in Civil Engineering with honor from the University of London and a master degree in E-commerce
from the University of Hong Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (As at 31st March 2005)

Mr. David Michael Faktor

Mr. David Michael Faktor, aged 44, is a Director. He joined the Group in February 2004. In November
2000, he was appointed Managing Director International Trading for the Stemcor Group. He has been a
director of Stemcor Holdings Limited (“Stemcor”) since 1995. Stemcor’s principal business is the
international distribution of steel. Their worldwide network of offices provides services for all aspects of
international steel trading, including marketing, logistics, finance and after sales support. Mr. Faktor is
currently based in London, and is responsible for the Stemcor Group's trading activities in the Far East,
South Asia, Northern Africa, Middle East, Caribbean and CIS.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (As at 31st March 2005)

Mr. Kennedy Ying Ho Wong

Mr. Kennedy Ying Ho Wong, J.P, aged 42, is a Director. He joined the Group in August 2003. Mr. Wong is
a solicitor and a China Appointed Attesting Officer. He is the managing partner of Philip K.H. Wong,
Kennedy Y.H. Wong & Co., Solicitors & Notaries. He is a National Committee Member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (year 2003-2008). He is also a director of the following listed
companies in Hong Kong - Raymond Industrial Ltd., China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd., Far Eastern
Polychem Industries Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited, Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company Limited
and Capinfo Company Limited. Mr. Wong has a BA in Law from University of Kent in United Kingdom.
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Mr. Philip King Huen Ma

Mr. Philip King Huen Ma, aged 48, is a Director. Mr. Ma is the group managing director of The Sincere
Company Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in March 2000. Mr. Ma
holds a masters degree in business administration from McMaster University in Canada. Mr. Ma is also
very active in his community services and was the Chairman of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association (“HKRMA") from 1996-2000. HKRMA is the major association representing Hong Kong'’s
retail industry with over 600 member companies which employs over 200,000 people.

Mr. Kenny King Ching Tam

Mr. Kenny King Ching Tam, aged 55, is a Director. He joined the Group in September 2004. Mr. Tam
graduated from Concordia University, Canada with a bachelor degree in commerce. He is a qualified
accountant in Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Tam is a practicing accountant in Hong Kong and is the owner
of Kenny Tam & Co., Certified Public Accountants. He is also a registered Insolvency Practitioner of the
Official Receiver’s Office. Mr. Tam has substantial experience in the accounting and insolvency fields. He
serves on a number of advisory committees in the Accountancy and Insolvency Profession and has been
active in community work in Hong Kong for many years. Mr. Tam is also an independent non-executive
director of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited, Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, CCT Telecom
Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited and VSC.



Report of the Directors

The board of Directors (the “Board”) have the pleasure of presenting their annual report together with
the audited accounts of iSteelAsia Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st March 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of
steel products, provision of procurement services for steel products, operation of an e-commerce vertical
portal for the provision of online steel trading services and ancillary services, and investment holding.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment results by business segment and geographical segment
for the year ended 31st March 2005 is set out in Note 26 to the accompanying accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March 2005, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately
22% of the Group's total turnover while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
80% of the Group's total purchases.

For the year ended 31st March 2005, Van Shung Chong Hong Limited (“VSCHL'), a subsidiary of Van
Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited (“VSC BVI") which is a substantial shareholder and an initial management
shareholder of the Company as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), was the largest supplier of the Group and accounted for
approximately 50% of the Group’s total purchases. VSCHL has granted the Group a normal credit period
with respect to such purchases and has agreed not to demand repayment of overdue balances but charge
interest on the overdue balances based on commercial lending rates.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st March 2005 are set out in the consolidated profit
and loss account on page 35 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and recommend that the accumulated losses
of approximately HK$171,340,000 as at 31st March 2005 be carried forward.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company are set out in Notes 21 and 23
respectively, to the accompanying accounts.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 to the
accompanying accounts.

As at 31st March 2005, the Company did not have any distributable reserves.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the accompanying accounts.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 11 to the accompanying
accounts.

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings as at 31st March 2005 are set out in Note 18 to the accompanying
accounts.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 27 to the accompanying accounts.

DIRECTORS
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao, Chairman

Ms. Miriam Che LiYao, Deputy Chairman (Resigned on 30th June 2004)
Mr. Desmond Hay Ching Fu, CEO

Non-executive directors
Mr. David Michael Faktor
Mr. Daniel Takuen Shih (Resigned on 29th April 2004)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Philip King Huen Ma

Mr. Kennedy Ying Ho Wong

Mr. Kenny King Ching Tam (Appointed on 30th September 2004)

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Kenny King Ching Tam and
Mr. Philip King Huen Ma will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao has entered into a service contract with the Group commencing from 1st April
2000 and his service contract is continuous. Mr. Desmond Hay Ching Fu joined the Group in May 2000
and was appointed as an executive Director on 20th February 2004. Mr. Fu’'s service contract is valid for
the duration up to 31st December 2005. All the abovementioned service contracts can be terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2005, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company

Attributable Number of Shares
interest to the and approximate Number of Number of Aggregate
Name Nature of interest Director % of shareholding Warrants options interest
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Mr. Andrew — Corporate interest held by deemed interest
Cho Fai Yao TN Development (Note 3] (indirectly) 163,367600  (10.23%) 39,260,320 — 202,627920
— Corporate interest held by more than one-third
Huge Top (Note 4) (indirectly) 169,811,344  (10.01%) 31,962,268 — 191,773,612
— Corporate interest held by through Huge Top
VSC BVI (Note 5) (indirectly) 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 — 361,231,200
— Corporate interest held by ~ 100% (directly)
Right Action (Note 6) 102,400,000  (6.41%) 20,480,000 — 122,880,000
— Personal interest (Note 7) ~ 100% (directly) — (—) — 5,000,000 5,000,000

726,604,944 (45.51%) 151,907,788 5,000,000 883,512,732

Mr. Desmond ~ — Personal interest (Note 7) ~ 100% (directly)
Hay Ching Fu = (—) — 11,750,000 11,750,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)
Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company (Contd)

Notes:

These shares are the ordinary shares (“Shares”) of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company.

The warrants of the Company (“Warrants”) are listed and entitle the holders to subscribe in cash for Shares at a
subscription price of HK$0.10 each (subject to adjustment) and are exercisable between 18th June 2002 and 17th
June 2005. These Warrants represent physically settled equity derivatives.

As at 31st March 2005, TN Development Limited (“TN Development”) owns 163,367,600 Shares and 39,260,320
Warrants. Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited (“VSC BVI") owns 54% of the issued share capital of TN Development
and Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao owns 10% of the issued share capital of TN Development. Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao is one
of the two directors of TN Development. These interests of the aforesaid Director in the securities of the Company
were corporate interests.

All Shares held by TN Development are, or are intended to be, the subject of options exercisable, in certain
circumstances, by designated employees and founding members pursuant to the share option agreements and the
revenue option agreements, respectively as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 14th April 2000. The sole
purpose of TN Development is to provide an avenue to motivate the Company’s employees and founding members
while at the same time not incurring any dilution effect to the public investors of the Company.

As at 31st March 2005, Huge Top Industrial Ltd. (“Huge Top”) owns 159,811,344 Shares and 31,962,268 Warrants. Mr.
Andrew Cho Fai Yao directly holds approximately 11.91% and indirectly through Perfect Capital International Corp.
(“Perfect Capital”) owns approximately 42.86% of the issued share capital of Huge Top and is entitled to exercise
more than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Huge Top. Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao owns the entire
issued share capital of Perfect Capital. Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao is one of the two directors of Huge Top. These
interests of the aforesaid Director in the securities of the Company were corporate interests.

As at 31st March 2005, VSC BVI owns 301,026,000 Shares and 60,205,200 Warrants and Huge Top owns approximately
47.05% of the issued share capital of Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited (“VSC"). VSC BVI is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of VSC. Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao is one of the two directors from time to time of VSC BVI. These interests
of the aforesaid Director in the securities of the Company were corporate interests.

As at 31st March 2005, Right Action Offshore Inc. (“Right Action”) owns 102,400,000 Shares and 20,480,000 Warrants.
Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao owns the entire issued share capital of Right Action and is also the sole director of that
company. These interests were corporate interests in the Company.

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are separately disclosed in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company (Contd)

For the year ended 31st March 2005, the Company had complied the Model Code adopted on 31st March
2004 as the required standard against which Directors must measure their conduct regarding transactions
in securities of the Company according to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2005, none of the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (include interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under provisions of SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as referred in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract or arrangement of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the Company’s Directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
DIVISIONS 2 AND 3 OF PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31st March 2005, so far as is known to the Directors the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company the interests of which were disclosed above) had an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which were disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which a Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the Group together with particulars of any
options in respect of such capital:

Long positions
Number of Shares

and approximate % of Number of Aggregate
Name Nature of interest shareholding Warrants interest Notes
Substantial shareholders of the Company
VSC BVI — directly 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 361,231,200

— indirect deemed interest
through TN Development 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920

464,393,600 (29.09%) 99,465,520 563,859,120 1

VSC — indirectly through VSC BVI 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 361,231,200
— indirect deemed interest
through TN Development 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920

464,393,600 (29.09%) 99,465,520 563,869,120 1&2

Huge Top — directly 159,811,344 (10.01%) 31,962,268 191,773,612
— indirectly through VSC BVI 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 361,231,200

— indirect deemed interest
through TN Development 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920

624,204,944 (39.10%) 131,427,788 755,632,732 1,2&3
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PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE UNDER

DIVISIONS 2 AND 3 OF PART XV OF THE SFO (Cont’d)
Long positions (Contd)
Number of Shares

and approximate % of Number of Aggregate
Name Nature of interest shareholding Warrants interest
Substantial shareholders of the Company
Perfect
Capital — indirectly through Huge Top 159,811,344 (10.01%) 31,962,268 191,773,612
— indirectly through VSC BVI 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 361,231,200
— indirect deemed interest
through TN Development 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920
624,204,944 (39.10%) 131,427,788 755,632,732
Ms. Miriam — indirect deemed interest
Che LiYao through Huge Top 159,811,344 (10.01%) 31,962,268 191,773,612
— indirect deemed interest
through VSC BVI 301,026,000 (18.86%) 60,205,200 361,231,200
— indirect deemed interest
through TN Development 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920
624,204,944 (39.10%) 131,427,788 755,632,732
TN Development — directly 163,367,600 (10.23%) 39,260,320 202,627,920
Other shareholder of the Company
Right Action — directly 102,400,000 (6.41%) 20,480,000 122,880,000

Notes

1,2&3

1,2,3&4
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PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
DIVISIONS 2 AND 3 OF PART XV OF THE SFO (Contd)
Long positions (Contd)

Notes:

1. VSC BVI owns 54% of the share capital of TN Development and is deemed to be interested in the 163,367,600 Shares
and 39,260,320 Warrants held by TN Development as at 31st March 2005. VSC BVI directly owns 301,026,000 Shares
and 60,205,200 Warrants as at 31st March 2005. VSC BVI is therefore directly and indirectly interested in an aggregate
of 464,393,600 Shares and 99,465,520 Warrants.

2. VSC owns the entire issued share capital of VSC BVI, VSC is therefore deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
464,393,600 Shares and 99,465,520 Warrants.

3. Perfect Capital owns approximately 42.86% of the issued share capital of Huge Top as at 31st March 2005. Huge Top
is beneficially interested in approximately 47.05% of the issued share capital of VSC as at 31st March 2005 and
Perfect Capital and Huge Top are therefore deemed to be interested in the 163,367,600 Shares and 39,260,320
Warrants held by TN Development and the 301,026,000 Shares and 60,205,200 Warrants held by VSC BVI as at 31st
March 2005. As at the same date, Huge Top also directly owns 159,811,344 Shares and 31,962,268 Warrants. Huge
Top is therefore directly and indirectly interested in an aggregate of 624,204,944 Shares and 131,427,788 Warrants,
and Perfect Capital is indirectly interested in the same aggregate interests.

4. As at 31st March 2005, Ms. Miriam Che Li Yao is one of the two directors for TN Development and Huge Top while
the remaining director of these two companies is Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao who is the brother of
Ms. Miriam Che LiYao. Ms. Miriam Che LiYao is therefore through Huge Top indirectly interested in an aggregate of
624,204,944 Shares and 131,427 788 Warrants.

B All Shares held by TN Development are, or are intended to be, the subject of options exercisable, in certain
circumstances, by designated employees and founding members pursuant to the share option agreements and the
revenue option agreements, respectively as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 14th April 2000. The sole
purpose of TN Development is to provide an avenue to motivate the Company’s employees and founding members
while at the same time not incurring any dilution effect to the public investors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2005, the Directors were not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company the interests of which were disclosed above)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which were
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which a Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) and/or were directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the Group together with
particulars of any options in respect of such capital.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the terms of the Company’s share option scheme approved by the shareholders on 13th April 2000

(the “Old Scheme”), the Board of Directors of the Company may at their discretion, invite any full-time

employees of the Company or any of the companies of the Group, including any executive Directors, to

take up options to subscribe for Shares. The Old Scheme became effective upon the listing of the Shares

on 20th April 2000 and was terminated on 10th June 2002. A new share option scheme has been

adopted by the Company since 10th June 2002 (the “New Scheme"”) to replace the Old Scheme to

comply with the current statutory requirements. The Company may grant options to the participants as

set out in the New Scheme. Summary of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme was as follows:

Old Scheme
1. Purpose of the Old and As an incentive to employees.
New Schemes
2. Participants of the Old and  Any full-time employee including
New Schemes any executive director of the
Group.

New Scheme

To provide incentives to
participants to contribute to the
Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and/or to retain high-
calibre employees and attract
human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

Employee/agent/consultant or
representative, including any
executive or non-executive
director, of any member of the
Group or any other person who
satisfies the selection criteria as
set out in the New Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont4d)

3. Total number of Shares
available for issue under
the Old and New Schemes
and percentage of issued
share capital as at the date
of this annual report

4. Maximum entitlement of
each participant under the
Old and New Schemes

Old Scheme

52,750,000 Shares (approximately
3.3% of issued share capital),
being the outstanding options
unexercised as at the date of this
annual report.

The total number of Shares
subject to the Old Scheme and
any other schemes must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the
of the

Company from time to time

issued share capital

excluding (i) Shares issued upon
the exercise of options granted
pursuant to the Old Scheme and
any other schemes; and (ii) any
pro rata entitlements to further
Shares issued in respect of those
Shares mentioned in (i) during a
specified period of 10
consecutive years.

25% of the aggregate number of
Shares for the time being issued
and issuable under the Old

Scheme.

New Scheme

The Company may initially grant
options representing 156,450,000
Shares under the New Scheme
(i.,e. 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the
date of approval of the New
Scheme and approximately 9.8%
of the issued share capital as at
the date of this annual report).

The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme
and any other schemes of the
Company and/or its subsidiary
(including the Old Scheme) must
not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company or
its subsidiary if this would result

in the 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including
exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any
twelve-month period under the
New Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company
and/or any subsidiary must not
exceed 1% of the number of

Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont4d)

5. The period within which
the Shares must be taken
up under an option

6. The minimum period for
which an option must be

held before it can be
exercised
7. The amount payable on

application or acceptance
of the option and the
period within which
payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for
such purposes must be

paid

Old Scheme

Must not be less than three years
and not more than ten years from
the date upon the option is
accepted in accordance with the
Old Scheme but subject to the
provisions for early termination
contained therein.

No such minimum period
specified under the Old Scheme
but the Directors can grant
options at terms and conditions
as they may think fit to offer.

HK$1 is to be paid as consideration
for the grant of option and the
option shall be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant.

New Scheme

Must not be more than ten years
from the date of offer of grant of
the option.

No such minimum period
specified and an option may be
exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Scheme at any
time during a period to be
notified by the Board of Directors
to each grantee.

The acceptance of an option, if
accepted, must be made within
28 days from the date of grant
with a non-refundable payment of
HK$10 in cash from the grantee
to the Company on acceptance
of the offer.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont4d)

8. The basis of determining
the exercise price

9. The remaining life of the
Old and New Schemes

Old Scheme

The exercise price of an option
will be at least the highest of:

a. the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the
date of offer of the grant
of the option, which must
be a business day;

b. the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the
five business days

immediately preceding the

date of offer of the grant

of the option; and

©. the nominal value of the
Shares.

The Old Scheme was adopted on
13th April 2000 and was originally
effective until 12th April 2010. On
10th June 2002, the Old Scheme
was resolved by the shareholders
of the Company to have been
terminated thereon.

New Scheme

The exercise price of an option
will be at least the highest of:

a. the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the
date of offer of the grant
of the option, which must
be a business day;

b. the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the
five business days

immediately preceding the

date of offer of the grant

of the option; and

. the nominal value of the
Shares.

The New Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the
adoption date i.e. 10th June

2002.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)
Details of movement in the share options to subscribe for Shares granted to and held by certain Directors

during the year ended 31st March 2005 under the Old Scheme were as follows:

Name Date of grant
Directors:—
Mr. Andrew 7th November

Cho Fai Yao 2000

Mr. Desmond  3rd July 2000
Hay Ching Fu

7th November
2000

Sub-total
Employees: —

In aggregate 3rd July 2000

In aggregate 7th November
2000

Sub-total

Total of Old Scheme

Exercise
price
per Share

HK$0.485

HK$0.360

HK$0.485

HK$0.360

HK$0.485

Vesting period

7th November 2000

to 7th November 2001

3rd July 2000
to 30th September 2001

7th November 2000
to 7th November 2001

3rd July 2000
to 30th September 2001

7th November 2000
to 7th November 2001

Exercise period

8th November 2001

to 12th April 2010

1st October 2001
to 12th April 2010

8th November 2001
to 12th April 2010

1st October 2001
to 12th April 2010

8th November 2001
to 12th April 2010

Number of options

Lapsed
Beginning  during  End of
of year the year year
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
5,000 — 5,000
250 — 250
11,500 — 11,500
16,750 — 16,750
19,600 (7500) 12,100
38,900  (13,000) 25,900
58,600  (20,500) 38,000
75,250  (20,500) 54,750

No options under the Old Scheme were granted, exercised or cancelled during the year. Upon termination

of the Old Scheme on 10th June 2002, no further options were granted thereunder but in all other

respects, the provisions of the Old Scheme remain in force and all options granted prior to such termination

continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith. Up to the date of this annual report, no

options have been granted pursuant to the New Scheme. All the above-mentioned options are unlisted

and represent physically settled equity derivatives.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 2 to the accompanying accounts.

During the year ended 31st March 2005, the Group has the following continuing connected transactions
(“the Transactions”) in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Transactions had been
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 17th April 2003 and the details of the Transactions had
been disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 31st March 2003 (“the Circular”):

1. Under the arrangement of a procurement services agreement dated 13th April 2000 entered into
between Metal Logistics Company Limited (“ML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and VSCHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of VSC BVI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, ML
agreed to provide and/or procure any of its subsidiaries, if applicable, to provide sourcing, purchasing
and quality control services on steel coils to the VSC Group's (as defined below) coil centre
operation in return for a procurement service fee is calculated at the rate of US$5.00 per tonne for
the first 24,000 tonnes and US$2.00 per tonne in excess of 24,000 tonnes of steel coils sourced
which represents a similar rate chargeable for such service in the market. The amount payable by
the VSC Group has been capped at HK$2,800,000 for the year ended 31st March 2004 and at
HK$3,000,000 for the year ended 31st March 2005 and at HK$3,500,000 for the year ending 31st
March 2006 according to the Circular.

2. Under the arrangement of a steel supply agreement dated 13th April 2000 entered into between
ML and VSCHL, the VSC Group (as defined below) agreed to source and supply steel to the Group
on and subject to the standard terms and conditions of purchase of the Group and the Group will
reimburse the VSC Group at cost (including, but not limited to, insurance, transportation,
warehousing costs incurred in respect of such supply, etc.). The total purchases made by the
Group from the VSC Group have been capped at HK$350 million for the year ended 31st March
2004 and at HK$410 million for the year ended 31st March 2005 and at HK$500 million for the year
ending 31st March 2006 according to the Circular.

3. VSC (the holding company of VSC BVI) and its subsidiaries and its associated companies (collectively
the “VSC Group”) may from time to time source/procure/distribute/sell steel products via the
Group's iSteelAsia.com website, but there is no signed agreement between the VSC Group and
the Group regarding these transactions. For each of the three years ending 31st March 2006, the
annual sales of the VSC Group transacted via the trading platform at iSteelAsia.com have been
capped at HK$667 million per annum while the commission which may be earned by iSteelAsia.com
from the VSC Group has been capped at HK$10 million per annum according to the Circular.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are of the view that the Transactions
are essential for the efficient and continuous operation of the Group. Given the Transactions will occur on
a regular and continuing basis, the Directors consider that it would not be practicable to announce, or if
necessary, obtain prior approval from the shareholders of the Company on each occasion they arise.
Accordingly, the Company convened and held a special general meeting on 17th April 2003 and the
ordinary resolution to approve the Transactions and the relevant caps for a further 3-year period ending
31st March 2006 was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company. Details of the
Transactions had been disclosed in this annual report as described in Rules 20.45(1) to (5) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the Transactions have been entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that the Transactions (a) have received the approval of
the Board; (b) are in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group if those transactions involve the
provision of goods or services by the Group; (c) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the Transactions; and (d) have not exceeded the respective caps agreed with the
Stock Exchange.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Mr. David Michael Faktor (“Mr. Faktor”), a non-executive Director of the Company, is a director of
Stemcor Holdings Limited (“Stemcor”) whose business is principally engaged in international steel trading.
As at 31st March 2005, Mr. Faktor holds 252,500 shares in Stemcor which represents 3.8% of the issued
share capital of Stemcor.
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COMPETING INTERESTS (Contd)

Mr. Andrew Cho Fai Yao (“Mr. Yao"”) is the chairman of the Board of the Company, and also the chairman
of the board of directors of VSC (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange), and VSC is also
engaged in steel trading business. As at 31st March 2005, the interests and short positions of Mr. Yao in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of VSC or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required pursuant to the Model Code to
be notified to the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Attributable interest Approximate
Nature of interest to Mr. Yao Number of shares percentage
(Note 1)

— Corporate interest deemed interest (indirectly) 173,424,000 47.05%

held by Huge Top

(Note 2)
— Personal interest 100% (directly) 1,614,000 0.44%
Notes:
1. These shares are the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of VSC.
2. As at 31st March 2005, Huge Top holds 173,424,000 shares of VSC. Mr. Yao is one of the two directors of Huge Top.

Mr. Yao directly holds approximately 11.91% and indirectly through Perfect Capital owns approximately 42.86% of the
issued shares of Huge Top and is entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of
Huge Top. Mr. Yao owns the entire issued share capital of Perfect Capital.

The Directors believe that there is a risk that such businesses may compete with those of the Group.
However, the Directors are also of the view that the invaluable experience of Mr. Faktor and Mr. Yao in
the steel industry will complement the development of the Group’s business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the management shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31st March 2005.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an initial/annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rules 5.09 or 5.11 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of Directors, the Company had complied with the “Board Practices and Procedures” as set
out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules in force prior to 31st December 2004 throughout the
year under review, except that the non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. However,
the non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
based upon the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
audit committee held four meetings during the year. The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing
the Company’s annual reports and quarterly reviews and providing advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Philip King Huen Ma, Mr. Kennedy Ying Ho Wong and Mr. Kenny King Ching Tam.
One of the members of the Audit Committee is an appropriate professional accounting expertise as
required under Rule 5.08 of the GEM Listing Rules. These audited accounts for the year ended 31st
March 2005 of the Company now reported on have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS
Arthur Andersen & Co were auditors of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2002.
PricewaterhouseCoopers were auditors of the Company for the three years ended 31st March 2005.

The accompanying accounts were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for their re-appointment
as the Company’s auditors for the ensuing year is be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

Desmond Hay Ching Fu
Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 9th June 2005
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PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
iSTEELASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 35 to 76 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. \We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the company and of the group, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.



iSteelAsia Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2004/05

Auditors’ Report #% E Al ¥R &

ERNE®R @

RAZ BN FE R B FIHETT 2 4% T 1ERS - $HLARR
EREAREMRAVEZERRRESEB
2 NERESRNEE  RERSEERDHF
EEZHERMR - ERABEZETE - EEH
BEAR  AZEAMEFEZEREMESZE
KEER FETRHM - AEEHAERMZ
EZIEARTNIERELEGE CER -

=R

AZEERR LA ZRERANEERATF
wERE BEARE BEEER_TTRF=
A=t—BR&EERZMBAALE EXEE
EZALFEZERARRESRE - XRER
BRRGIZHEREZRRH -

BORBKEGTMEHAR
HE AN

B —EZTAFANANE

BASIS OF OPINION (Contd)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the group as at 31st March 2005
and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended,
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9th June 2005
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For the year ended 31st March 2006 B#Z_—_ZFTETAF=A=1+—HIFE

S

HE KA

EHM

H AU A
HERDHEX N
—RRITERX
HEREZ

F U R
—AREREEE
HE KB QA
ZFER
RN (BE)
MBEM
BT AT B 18

18

B E R D&
P SR # BS 1R

L BR R 2
B 3R £ 5

BREE-EAX

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Gain on disposal of investments, net
Impairment loss of an investment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net
Operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Taxation

Loss after taxation but before
minority interests

Minority interests
Loss attributable to shareholders

Loss per share — Basic

B ot
Note

16}

25(c)

10

—EEREF —EFENF
2005 2004
FHET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
859,685 1,429,443
(828,580) (1,390,654)
31,105 38,789
1,239 1,078
(7,494) (7,891)
(25,139) (28,682)
911 —
- (20,414)

(63) —
559 (17,120)
(5,056) (7,922)
(4,497) (25,042)
(5,946) (889)
(10,443) (25,931)
— 220
(10,443) (25,711)

HK(0.65) cents HK(1.63) cents
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As at 31st March 2005 R -_ZEZTARF=HA=+—
&8 N
Consolidated Company
ZEZnE —EEME ZEERE —EEME
2005 2004 2005 2004
fisE FEx FAT FEx FET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BE&E Fixed assets 11 1,411 2,922 - —
BIERER A Website development costs 12 21 43 - =
RHRE Long-term investment 13 780 2,136 - 2,136
BLERBEE Deferred tax assets 20 - 4,483 - =
REBARZIKE  Investments in subsidiaries 14 - = 1 1
ERBDEELR Total non-current assets 2,212 9,584 1 2137
RBEE Current assets
RHRE Short-term investment 13 - 23,400 - =
"E Inventories 15 94,936 131,082 - —
BEke Deposits for purchase
of inventories 27,387 89,321 - —
FANFE %4 R  Prepayments, deposits and
H R other receivables 7,893 12,735 30 53
EUERNZE Accounts and bills receivable 16 3,977 31,193 - =
BREARITER Pledged bank deposits 17 16,080 34,439 13,049 13,645
HeREf Cash and other bank
RITER deposits 17 13,263 55,433 12 3,961
THEELE Total current assets 163,536 377603 13,091 17659
REEE Current liabilities
RHREE Short-term bank borrowings 18 (24,360) (51,426) - -
EREARER Accounts and bills payable 2819 (121,018) (284,445) - —
eI 50R Other payables (1,807) (517) - —
AR Accruals (5,634) 2,082) (71) (50)
B FE Receipts in advance (5,256) (30,065) - -
JEAHTE Taxation payable (5,536) (6,007) - =
nHAELE Total current liahilities (163,611) (374,542) (711) (50)
Ry (RE)/ Net current (liabilities)/assets
BEFHE (75) 3,061 13,020 17,609
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
fE T B Amounts due to subsidiaries
NGIE 14 - = (3,907) (4,702)
REFH Net assets 2,137 12,645 9,114 15,044
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Balance Sheets £ s

As at 31st March 2006 R-ZFEZEARF=A=+—H
&4 N
Consolidated Company
ZEEZEF e uif.a ZETEF ey uf.a
2005 2004 2005 2004
Bt TiEx FAET TiEx TEx
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Representing:
B Share capital 21 159,659 159,638 159,659 159,638
i Reserves 24 (157522) (146,993) (150,545) (144,594)
RF#ER Shareholders' equity 2,137 12,645 9,114 15,044
SEE EFFTHAHR
Pk1E 18 HRBE
Andrew Cho Fai Yao Desmond Hay Ching Fu

Chairman Director and Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEeRETRE R

For the year ended 31st March 2005 #HZ_-—FTZETRF=-H=+—HIFEF

KEED
BREmEEZRE ORIL) /
mARER
EHHE
ENFHE
ENPEEEREH
EREFECEFAEHR

EeEPzRe (ML) /
mAF B

REEY
ER-—EREZRS
RAKEZEM
HEREMBREA
HEHBARMEHE -

nELEZRE
NEETEEE
HEBTEEMSRE
N E R R B AR
BEERRITERL
B/ ()

B AR

REEBZHERA/
() F8

MEEPH 2R ORi) /
MARE

MEED
BTERR
MERBRTER
BEERHRTER

ERUBRTER AL FE

ENf—HAHBELARZ

RERD RERLFR

RERREFEERL
(B4 /10

FNzReRBeEERR
FRZAE AT SEER

Operating activities
Net cash (outflow)/inflow generated
from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Mainland China enterprise income tax paid
Mainland China enterprise income tax refunded

Net cash (outflow)/inflow
from operating activities

Investing activities
Dividend received from an investment
Increase in long-term investment
Proceeds from disposal of investments
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
net of cash disposed of
Additions of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Additions of website development costs
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged
bank deposits
Translation adjustments

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow before
financing activities

Financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares
New short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Net decrease in trust receipts bank loans
Distribution paid to minority shareholders
of a subsidiary

Net cash outflow from financing activities

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

—EERF —TEME

2005 2004

&t FER FET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
25(a) (52,162) 55,554
580 657
(5,056) (7.922)
(2,096) (704)

473 324

(58,261) 47909

659 421

(780) —

26,447 —

25(c) (1,396) —
(191) (1,021)

129 142
(5) (17)
18,359 (34,439)
(86) (48)
43,136 (34,962)

(15,125) 12,947

25(b)

21 68

6,615 68,480

(9,450) (62,857)

(24,231) (11,331)

- (1,114)

(27,045) (6,754)

(42,170) 6,193

55,433 49,240

25(d) 13,263 55,433
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Z & R R #E & & 8 | &

For the year ended 31st March 2005 H#Z-—FERF=F=+—HILFE

—ZEERHF —ZTTNF
2005 2004
Bt aF FET FAET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
F 2 EHR Balance as at beginning of year 12,645 13,351
f% R e & 1B Loss attributable to shareholders 24 (10,443) (25,711)
JE N TR Translation adjustments 24 (86) (48)
—BRHAKERTF Change in fair value of a long-term
BE#F) investment 24 548 1,451
HE—BERHEKE Realisation of investment revaluation
mEm .z reserve upon disposal of a
KEEHFHE long-term investment 24 (548) —
HER—IEHKH Investment revaluation reserve transferred
®EREEEMHA to profit and loss account upon
HESHRFEEEY recognition of impairment loss of
EHEHZK a long-term investment — 20,414
BT RRAE Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 21 21 3,188

FR 7R Balance as at end of year 2,137 12,645
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FEEEMER (BB RIHE
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WA ERNEZE - BRA
PABI 57 2 B AN R [ ) 20 %
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(b) HEoEE -
BAEEBEAERREHEL
A2 ER -

REAFEBAXKBEZHEBER
A DRlm s EA L E e
BEHENERBARLIBEER

BHREmK -

AEBFRBERARABEAR S R
BEARGEERBREH -
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PMEEEFEMERZZR &
REMAZFEBHELEFHE N
RAEEBREAINEELRE -

D BB IR 4 25 48 S SRR P A Y
REAREEERFEE R
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these accounts are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and comply with accounting standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that
investments are stated at fair value.

The HKICPA issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2005. The Group has not early adopted
these new HKFRSs in the accounts for the year ended
31st March 2005. The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated profit
and loss account from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Any significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the disposal
and the Group's share of its net assets together with
any unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill and any
related cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustments.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.
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EXRETEEZHERALHEND
BARF—B -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, controls more than one half of the
voting power; has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies, to appoint or remove the majority
of the members of the board of directors, or to cast
majority votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity established
between the Group and one or more other parties for a
pre-determined period of time, with the rights and
obligations of the joint venture partners being governed
by a contract. If the Group is able to govern and control
the financial and operating policies of the contractual
joint venture so as to obtain benefits from its activities,
such joint venture is considered as a subsidiary and is
accounted for as such.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Major expenditures on modifications and betterments
of fixed assets which will increase their future economic
benefits are capitalised, while expenditures on repairs
and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Fixed
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rate is 20%.

The depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the methods and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern
of economic benefits from fixed assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Contd)

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that assets included in
fixed assets are impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce that asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
then carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Website development costs

Costs directly associated with the development of
specific websites, which include external direct costs
of materials and services consumed in developing or
obtaining an internal-use website, are capitalised. The
capitalisation of such costs ceases no later than the
point at which the websites are substantially completed
and ready for their intended purpose. Website
development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of three years, which represents the
expected useful life of the website. The Company's
Directors and the Group’s management review and
evaluate the recoverability of the carrying value of
website development costs periodically by reference to
certain external factors, including, but not limited to,
anticipated future revenue to be generated from the
website and changes in technology.

Research and other development costs relating to
website development and website maintenance costs
are expensed as incurred.

Investments

Investments, which are held for non-trading purpose,
are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date.
Changes in fair value of individual investments are
credited or debited to the investment revaluation reserve
until the investments are sold or otherwise disposed of
or until the investments are determined to be impaired.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss, representing
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant investments,
together with any surplus/deficit transferred from the
investment revaluation reserve, is dealt with in the profit
and loss account. When there is objective evidence that
individual investments are impaired, the cumulative loss
recorded in the investment revaluation reserve is taken
to the profit and loss account.




Notes to the Accounts Bk B [

il

X ] m 5 3R 2004/05

G

1 EESHEX @) 1
(h) =& (h)
FEERABRASEEEME

#2@&%A% PN EDE DN
EHEFEZREME BEELT
TERBELO ZHBELEESR
B o A IRRE T IRTERT S EFT
BRENBRGHTIEHE I HAE -

FE W2 BR K

FEW R RIZ R RIS L AT IR B4 -
BEERBRANEEERR IR
BRBEERIK-

(i) (i)

i 3E 3 R
ERERBELNAREENEER
BEZHERMMAERE <K@

(i) (i)

EMEZEERZ(F2BEE -
R4 E B AT HIET SRR RT 2 i1

REANETERILERE -

ERETRIAE E T30 KA Al BE A R
2R & SR T A B AT B A 2 AR B
EHEHMAER -

EERAERBERENBAR
REMELE2EEREZMREE -
BRERAEHEEREERE 2
i - WARBRIREEA] TB R R
TegEzeERZRIRI -

BE
EAREERANESEHMAERA
ERHEIREME - BRAAER
AEZEEEMEHERING -
Wee Al SEfb et B RAAE 2 BER
HeEEhEE - RESTH
W R ARRIBRZ KE
fBE HEBZEESEKREHL
REXEL  ABREGEHESRE
AEITAEMSRAX 2BRE - i
AEEBRPBESARE - AR
REBBEAIESE LAl 5 TR
RSBILEE °

(k) (k)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-
out basis, comprises materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated
selling expenses.

Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such
provision.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the accounts. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are
used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation. Where the Group
expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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(iii)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised
but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group. Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a
transaction can be measured reliably and when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group. Revenue is
recognised on the following bases:

Sales revenue

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

(i)

(ii) Commission from procurement and online steel
trading services

Commission from procurement and online steel
trading services is recognised when the services
are rendered.

(iii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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R

(p) (p)

G

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(m) Revenue recognition (Contd)

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods and provision of services are recorded
as receipts in advance.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group's contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the profit and loss account in the period in which they
are incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of
the relevant leases.



iSteelAsia Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2004/05

Notes to the Accounts Bk B [

G

1 FESHBE @ 1
(q) HemrE
AEMBETENRAAZERRSE
B AGRBREM Y FES
% ([Thae B ) BEAL - TEERI
NEZERS  REFEEUEA
BHET RS RERIEEE
BMAZSEZEREZEN
Hi S asfi s s¥EEREA
BRI EERNEERBRRE
EERZEREZEN - EXAE
HRERIAR 2 BHRANER -

(a)

AEEREZEAKRBTAET
REM - EAKRAMS - IE
BT AIMERTIBE B 1 2 KT /B
RAIZMEBEERABNREE
BERGEACZERERELR
BT MARXEBGEAFE
Rz FHERBRE - RiBEZ
EXSHMERZEREZBIIER
BONESELABREHERE -

TEEHR
REASENABHBHRS - A
SEREAEBE D EEREEHR
WA - M@\ RRE
WA o

(r) (r)

AOEKRAEEESTH - D EE
EXTZRREETEE #FE &
W R EMEEEE - Mo
BEMNETZERAKEMARLE
BE - BEAXHLBRABEEEER
E SBuRERARES KRB
BE -

MBS EERME - EXES
RIBEEmMNEZ B & RIEHR
BIHHMETE - REERER
Xt ABBEEMEMSE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group maintain their
books and records in the primary currencies of their
respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the
accounts of the individual companies, transactions in
other currencies during the year are translated into the
functional currencies at the applicable rates of exchange
prevailing at the time of the transactions; monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies
are translated into the respective functional currencies
at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are dealt
with in the profit and loss account of the individual
companies.

The Group prepares consolidated accounts in Hong Kong
dollars. For the purpose of consolidation, all assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at
the balance sheet date; all income and expense items
are translated at the applicable average exchange rates
during the year. Exchange differences arising from such
translation are dealt with as movements of cumulative
foreign currency translation adjustments.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of all of fixed assets,
inventories, receivables and other operating assets.
Segment liabilities consist primarily of all of the Group's
operating liabilities. Capital expenditure comprises
additions to fixed assets, website development costs
and short-term/long-term investments.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, turnover
is based on the destination of delivery of goods or the
location for the provision of services. Total assets and
capital expenditure are classified where the assets are
located.
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(s)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with a maturity of three months or less
from date of investment and bank overdrafts.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered

to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

REE-_ZETRF=A=1+—H
EFEARN AEEH—FHEER
A—EIEETERAR([EIEE
17]) B B 17 §#9399,246,000/& 7T
(ZZEZ M : 155,716,000/
o) WR—_ZBEERF=ZA=+—
BRBEETRERMNBKBELD
118,843,000/8 T (ZZEE Y &F
205,611,000 70) + H A BHI4A
/R #7115,453,000/ 7T (ZZEZ 1Y
£ : 198,417,000/ 7T) - BlBE
TERTAEBEEZEHMmME
A BHERIERNRER - BZ%
ERRBRHERENEENF
B o

(a)

The Group purchased inventories of approximately
HK$399,246,000 (2004: HK$155,716,000) from Van
Shung Chong Hong Limited (“VSCHL'), a related
company, during the year ended 31st March 2005, and
had an outstanding payable to VSCHL of approximately
HK$118,843,000 as at 31st March 2005 (2004:
HK$205,611,000) of which approximately
HK$115,453,000 (2004: HK$198,417,000) was overdue.
VSCHL has granted to the Group a normal credit period
and has agreed not to demand repayment of overdue
balances but charges interest on such balances based
on commercial lending rates.
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2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(b) Details of significant transactions with related parties

were:

Name of related party/
Nature of transaction

Van Shung Chong Hong Limited (i)

— Purchases made by the
Group (Note 2(a))

— Commission from
procurement services
earned by the Group

— Interest charged to the Group
(Note 2(a))

— Administrative fees charged
to the Group

CFY Enterprises Limited (i)
— Rental expense charged
to the Group

Note:

—®ERFE —TTNF
2005 2004
FET THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
399,246 155,716
2,221 1,894
3,380 5,672

360 360

162 198

(i) Van Shung Chong Hong Limited and CFY Enterprises Limited
are wholly owned by Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

() The amounts due to related companies arising from
transactions described in Note 2(b) were included in
accounts payable. Details of such balances are as

follows:

Name of related company

Van Shung Chong Hong Limited (i)

Note:

—®EEE —TTNH
2005 2004
FET THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
118,843 205,611

(i) The balance is unsecured, repayable within ordinary credit
term and bore interest at commercial lending rates for

overdue balances.
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3 EEERKA 3  TURNOVER AND REVENUES

WAL A TR Revenues recognised are as follows:
—EERE —ZETNF
2005 2004
FET FAE T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEWA Sales revenue 854,564 1,416,236

KERBLHAMESREAEE Commission from procurement and

online steel trading services 5,121 13,207
MEHERE Total turnover 859,685 1,429,443
i% B A Dividend income 659 421
A E WA Interest income 580 657
1,239 1,078

UL A Total revenues 860,924 1,430,521




iSteelAsia Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2004/05

Notes to the Accounts B B K 3F

4

rEREN(BE)
&R A, (BB EHNBR R AT
IHA :

EMEE —

BIXRA(BREEHE)
(K1 it6)
A NIATHERYE N
ZEFHEHBES
— —HBERA (KiE2b)

— HAt
HE—BLEMREZER (HE13)
HE—HMBARZ

&8 (HfE25(c)
BIEEEZINE
HEBEEEZER
78 ufh A 3% X AN B 55

FERE
= BUED B &

Bt A—
T R 2 s (W 13)
5 — R BB 2 ) 2 M2 (Y 225(c))
—HETREAZBBKA

R ERITERZFBHA

9 35 12 2505 2

MBER

ARAFARZHER
ZRITERHM R
N —MEERRZ
M2 (BfaE2(b)

4 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

Operating profit/(loss) is determined after charging and

crediting the following items:

After charging—

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) (Note 6)
Operating lease rental in respect
of premises paid to
— a related company
(Note 2(b))
— others
Loss on disposal of an
listed investment (Note 13)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 25(c))
Depreciation of fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Amortisation of website
development costs
Write-off of and provision for bad
and doubtful debts
Provision for inventories
Auditors’ remuneration

After crediting—

Gain on disposal of an
unlisted investment (Note 13)
Gain on disposal of a
subsidiary (Note 25(c))
Dividend income from an
unlisted investment
Interest income from
bank deposits
Net exchange gain

5 FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on amount due to a
related company (Note 2(b))

—ERRE —TTNF
2005 2004
FHET THET
HK$°000 HK$'000
9,416 15,232
162 198

990 1,656

194 =

263 =
1,016 1,069

87 118

27 892

1,761 439
1,448 420
500 438
1,105 =
200 =

659 421

580 657

328 376
—gREE -TTWAF
2005 2004
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
1,676 2,250
3,380 5,672
5,056 7922
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6 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

—EERF —EFENF

2005 2004

FET FE T

HK$'000 HK$°000

Salaries and allowances 7,947 12,556

Bonus 1,238 2,376
Pension costs — defined

contribution schemes
(Note 27) 231 300
9,416 15,232

7 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

—EERF —EFENF
2005 2004
FET FE T
HK$'000 HK$°'000
Fees for independent
non-executive directors 60 20
Fees for non-executive directors 1 15
Other emoluments for
executive directors
— Salaries and allowances 1,855 3,863
— Discretionary bonuses - 1,440
— Retirement contributions — 21
1,926 5,359

BE_ZEERF=_A=+—HIt
FERN - EBEEREERE
#4/636,0008 T (ZEZ M F
636,000/ 7T) °

HE_ZTZRAF=A=+—HK
—EENF=/A=+—H WA
FEAN AEEVTELFSHES
MEMRFEFEFAESZAESM
AREE LB 2 /E -

During the year ended 31st March 2005, Mr. Andrew
Cho Fai Yao waived his emolument of approximately
HK$636,000 (2004: HK$636,000).

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to
any director during the years ended 31st March 2005
and 2004.
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7 ESERERTBRAEME 7 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
(#&) (Cont'd)
(a) EEME (&) : (a) Directors’ emoluments (Contd)
EEMeRET AL EE Analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of
ZAMMT directors and emolument ranges is as follows:
—ZERHF —EFENF
2005 2004
WITES Executive directors
— # % 1,000,0007% 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
— 1,500,001 7T 2 2,000,000/% 7T — HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
— 2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,0007% 7T — HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 1
JERITES Non-executive directors
— # 2% 1,000,0007% T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 4
B IEHNITES Independent non-executive directors
— 21,000,000/ 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3
8 11

HE-_ZTRF=FA=+—HItEF
B ATESSaKEZHME 55
#3/1,855,0007% 7T (Z T Z Y 4F
1,806,000/ 7T) * & (ZZTZTMU4F :
480,000/ 7T) ~ E(ZZZMNF :
546,000 7T) R (ZZ MM 4F -
2,492,000/ 7T) ° IEAITEE RSB
VIERTEZTWR 2B AL
10,000/ 7T (ZZ=Z U4 : 10,000
BIT) + 1,0008 T (ZEZ W4
10,0007 7T) * 10,0008 T (ZEZ
PU4 : 6,000 7T) ~ & (Z2Z M
F 4,000 7L) c E(ZZEZ N
£ : 4,000775) * 10,0005 7T (=
ZTZPO4E : 1,000/ 7T) 540,000/
T (ZTZTFE &) °

AEREHF AL
AEERAFEANERSZH
UALTBERE-—UBER(ZZTZTN
F:NESE)  FEZMEDWN
DER EXHET@ 2 oITRA - H
BN (ZZEEWF « =f1) AL
ZER/EABMeNT

(b) (b)

For the year ended 31st March 2005, the executive
directors received individual emoluments of
approximately HK$1,855,000 (2004: HK$1,806,000), Nil
(2004: HK$480,000), Nil (2004: HK$546,000) and Nil
(2004: HK$2,492,000). The non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors received individual
fees of approximately HK$10,000 (2004: HK$10,000),
HK$1,000 (2004: HK$10,000), HK$10,000 (2004:
HK$6,000), Nil (2004: HK$4,000), Nil (2004: HK$4,000),
HK$10,000 (2004: HK$1,000) and HK$40,000 (2004: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include one director
(2004: two directors) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in Note 7(a) above. The
emoluments paid/payable to the remaining four (2004:
three) individuals were as follows:

—g®EE —TTN4H

2005 2\004

FET FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

HEARF & KRR, Basic salaries and allowances 2,191 1,925
4T Bonuses — 553
RIS HK Retirement contributions 24 36
2,215 2,514
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7 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Contd)
The emoluments fell within the following band:
—Z2ERHF —ZTTNF
2005 2004
Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 3
8 TAXATION

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2016.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
had no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to Mainland China enterprise income tax at rates ranging
from 15% to 33% (2004: 15% to 33%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account represents:

—EEHF —ETTMF
2005 2004
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
The Company and subsidiaries —
Current taxation
Hong Kong profits tax - =
Mainland China
enterprise income tax
— Current year 1,988 6,262
— Overprovisions
in prior years (525) (890)
Deferred taxation relating to the
origination and reversal of
temporary differences 4,483 (4,483)
5,946 889
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9 BRREMEIRE
BREEGGREBERERARRRKE
Z 18 495,951,000 7T (- T T4 ¢
14,680,000/ 7T) °

10 BEREE
HE - TZTHRE=A=+—HItFEZ
ERENEBREREEIGLRE EIER
4710,443,0008 0 (= T T 4 F
25,711,000 70) R FANE B 17 E @R
DNAEF 9 E4)1,596,443,0000 (—EZ
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BT 1R R 1T 16 2 S8 B o e P P A Y £
BEER MY EZISREEE

8-

8 TAXATION (Cont'd)
The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits tax
rate of Hong Kong, the home country of the Group, and the
reconciliation was as follows:

—Z2ERF —ETNE
2005 2004
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Loss before taxation (4,497) (25,042)
Calculated at Hong Kong profits
tax rate of 175% (2004: 17.5%) (787) (4,382)
Effect of
— different tax rates in other
jurisdictions 479 146
— income not subject to taxation (36) (37)
— expenses not deductible for
income tax purposes 338 3,591
— deferred tax assets not
recognised 2,043 3,031
— reversal of previously
recognised deferred
tax assets 4,483 —
— reversal of previously
unrecognised deferred
tax assets (49) (570)
— Qverprovisions in prior years (525) (890)
Taxation charge 5,946 889

9 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The consolidated loss attributable to shareholders included a
loss of approximately HK$5,951,000 (2004: HK$14,680,000)
dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

10 LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
31st March 2005 is based on the consolidated loss
attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$10,443,000
(2004: HK$25,711,000) and the weighted average of
approximately 1,596,443,000 (2004: 1,575,758,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the outstanding
warrants and share options were anti-dilutive.
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11 FIXED ASSETS
Movements were:
e
Consolidated
—EERF
2005
HEWHE
#EREM
Leasehold A EHME RE
improvements Office Motor B
and furniture equipment vehicles Total
FHETT BT HE T FETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Cost
Beginning of year 651 2,415 2,460 5,526
Additions 94 97 — 191
Disposals (164) (224) (145) (533)
Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 25(c)) (38) (75) (536) (649)
End of year 543 2,213 1,779 4,535
Accumulated
depreciation
Beginning of year 362 1,626 616 2,604
Charge for the year 143 471 402 1,016
Disposals (97) (178) (42) (317)
Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 25(c)) (14) (34) (131) (179)
End of year 394 1,885 845 3,124
Net book value
End of year 149 328 934 1,411
Beginning of year 289 789 1,844 2,922
12 WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Movements were:
wma
Consolidated
—EEHF —ETMF
2005 2004
F#E T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Cost
Beginning of year 33,364 33,347
Additions 5 17
End of year 33,369 33,364
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
Beginning of year 33,321 32,429
Amortisation for the year 27 892
End of year 33,348 33,321
Net book value
End of year 21 43
Beginning of year 43 918
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13 RE

13 INVESTMENTS

RHBIKLE Long-term investment
REE L™ Listed shares

Z B (i) in Hong Kong (i)

BN . At cost

NEE 2 RE Change in fair value

™ %5 (8
FEEM BN,

At quoted market value

Unlisted investments,

B 7N (if) at cost (ii)
HHERE Short-term investment
Ik E TR E (iii) Unlisted investments (iii)
X A At cost
REREEE Accumulated
impairment loss

(ii)

(iii)

BEZ EMBRMDIERER AT HR AR
(AIBXERIEBRAR) @ ZARRKRHE
SHERERNEREHERSAER
ARBIEREH - BE_TTHFE=A
=+t—BLEFER AEBEUH
1,942,000/ 7T 2 1B K& #E 578 49 194,000
BT ZEBEEHEERXTBRARZH
BIRE -

I EHIRE NG LT BRI
MERQA > —RRFBEANMKILZE
EREA10%EE © 1T RSB
TEMBERAE  TEEXBREE -
IREERIATFMSE - RARIZES
RALEEZERBRBNKE 2 KAEK
FER-_ZERAF=A=+—HzZATF
@ -

3 £ R 2 & E E R Stemcor
Holdings Limited ([ Stemcor]) 493.5%
A% A #E 25 o Stemcor /3 A 5 B FE i A 32
ZARE XEEBARESHMESR © )
ko keBEREZTERE - #ZE
—EERF=A=+—HLEFEER " K
£ [B17 (60 H 3R HA%E I A 49 24,505,000
T & B A Z A # & T Stemcor
R HER 41,105,000/ 7T 2 YK ©

) P NN

Consolidated Company
—225if —TIWNF —BRLEF -—TITNF
2005 2004 2005 2004
FET TR FET F¥ET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
— 22,550 - 22,550
— (20,414) — (20,414)
- 2,136 - 2,136
780 — - —
780 2,136 - 2,136
- 25,925 - —
— (2,525) — =
- 23,400 - —

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Investment in listed shares represented investment in shares in
AcrossAsia Limited (formerly known as AcrossAsia Multimedia
Limited), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. During the year ended 31st March
2005, the Group disposed of its entire investment in AcrossAsia
Limited for a consideration of approximately HK$1,942,000 and
recognised a loss of approximately HK$194,000.

Unlisted investment represents a 10% interest in Foshan Nanhai
STS Metal Co., Ltd., a joint venture enterprise established in
Mainland China. Foshan Nanhai STS Metal Co., Ltd., is principally
engaged in manufacturing, processing and trading of cold rolled
stainless steel. The Company's directors and the Group's
management consider the cost approximates the fair value of this
investment at 31st March 2005.

Investment in unlisted shares represented a 3.5% equity interest
in Stemcor Holdings Limited (“Stemcor”), a company incorporated
in the United Kingdom, which is principally engaged in the trading
of steel products and the provision of specialist services to the
steel and metals industries. During the year ended 31st March
2005, the Group exercised its put option to sell back its entire
equity interest to Stemcor for approximately HK$24,505,000 and
recognised a gain of approximately HK$1,105,000.
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14 AMBEARZRE 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
KA
Company
—g2EF -—TTMAE
2005 2004
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
JEEmKHD - REKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 3,500 3,500
= NGIE ] Due from subsidiaries 135,876 130,132
139,376 133,632
i - REHREEE Less: Accumulated impairment
losses (139,375) (133,631)
1 1

FEWHBATZEAEER CE0E
ZHB AR BAE DT RIR TAER

BE-_TERF=A=1—ALFEN
ZAEBRI - A AR A D 5

TTZEEEXR -

R-ETRE-A=+—BHBATZ

EACECENE

£

Name

EECHBTERR LA/

Chongging iSteelAsia Trading
Company Limited (ii)

Greater China Metal Limited

i-AsiaB2B Group Limited (i)

Sl (FE)REARRA

ISA (China) Investment Limited

ISA Group Holdings Limited

financially capable to do so.

of fit B 2
R
Place of
incorporation
and operations

B A
Mainland China

RERUES
British Virgin Islands

EBERHS
British Virgin Islands

EBERES
British Virgin Islands

EBERHS
British Virgin Islands

EETR
BRBRA

Issued and fully
paid share capital

60,000 7T
US$60,000

1E7T
US$1

(=
US$1

17T
Us$1

10,0003 7T
US$10,000

FEBELZ
N

B2 (i)
Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Group (i)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2005 were:

FEXK

Principal activities

M E 5

Trading of steel

REZKR
Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
RERER

Investment holding

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and not repayable until the subsidiaries are

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31st March 2005.
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14 REBARZKRE @)

=L

Name

iSteel Holdings (B.V.I.) Limited

THMMNEEFRRDA
iSteel (MT) Holdings Limited

ENBEEFR B
(BE)ERAT
iSteelAsia (Hong Kong) Limited

iSteelAsia Limited

TR ERAPIBEE
HERBERDA

iSteelAsia Logistics Macao
Commercial Offshore
Company Limited

BN e 5 R A (i)
ISA (South China)
Company Limited (ii)

iSteelAsia (Stemcor)
Holdings Limited

MetalAsia Holdings Limited

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

ot il B 32
REE I
Place of
incorporation
and operations

RERAES
British Virgin Islands

RBRAES
British Virgin Islands

it
Hong Kong

RBRAHES
British Virgin Islands

R P

Macau

H B A i
Mainland China

EBRAHE
British Virgin Islands

RBRAES
British Virgin Islands

BRTR
BRBRA

Issued and fully
paid share capital

EY
US$1

1%L
US$1
28T
HK$2

10% T
us$10

100,000 5 #&
MOP100,000

200,0003% 7T
US$200,000

1%
US$1

2,000% 7T
US$2,000

AEBEELZ
(&N £
B2 (i)
Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Group (i)
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

FEXK

Principal activities

REZK

Investment holding

RBEZRB

Investment holding

meEsTHEasn
INGEES
BLEREMES

Operation of an
e-commerce
vertical portal
business for
online steel trading

resTHEMRMA
INGEES
BERMES

Operation of an
e-commerce
vertical portal
business for
online steel trading

WiTE 5

Trading of steel

WiTE 5

Trading of steel

REZK

Investment holding

RBEZRB

Investment holding
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(i) i-AsiaB2B Group LimitedZ f& 5 B 28 A (i)
RIEEES - HaKBARZKRGAIH

BRA o

(i)  WEDRPBEANMKZ ZERE - & (ii)
EHMRTEATFEE_T——F3 =

TR_F -

14 REBARZRE @) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
AEBELZ
PR A 1 25
E i AR 32 B2 (i)
RS BRTR Percentage of
Place of BREBRAR equity
Z28 incorporation Issued and fully attributable to FEX7#%
Name and operations paid share capital the Group (i) Principal activities
CEBYREEBRAR B 48T 100% B SR
Metal Logistics Hong Kong HK$4 TR IR AR R 7
Company Limited Trading of steel
and provision
of procurement
services
TRHHEEE S (LF) H B A i 200,0003 7T 100% B 5
BR2A A (i) Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of steel
Shanghai iSteelAsia
International Limited (ii)
3| 3 8 T & B R 2 A (i) B A 2,000,000 7T 100% B 5
Shenzhen iSteelAsia Trading Mainland China HK$2,000,000 Trading of steel
Company Limited (ii)
REBR R H B A i 200,000 7T 100% #HE 5
BB 5 ERA A i) Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of steel
Tianjin iSteelAsia
International Limited (i)
THBBERDA EBERHS (E 100% REZER
Ya Gang Wang Co. Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$1 Investment holding
FAHEE T (L) H B A i 200,0003 7T 100% B 5
BR2A A (i) Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of steel
Yu Tai Steel
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (ii)
BaE - Notes:

The shares of i-AsiaB2B Group Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of the other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in
Mainland China to operate for periods ranging from 10 to 50 years

up to 2011 to 2052.
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15 78 15 INVENTORIES
GEREEBESREZRMER - K= Inventories consisted of rolled flat steel products for trading
ZZRFE=A=+—H - #22,499,000 purposes. As at 31st March 2005, inventories of
BT (ZEZEWMAE ¢ 7,329,000 7T) 2 approximately HK$22,499,000 (2004: HK$7,329,000) were
GFEMEREFAESE - stated at net realisable value.
ETHEERETBIBRITEREE (M Certain inventories were held under trust receipts bank loans
#£30) ° (Note 30).
16 EWERMRERE 16  ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
AEBZHE REEKRZEREE The Group generally requires sales to be settled by cash
B BRITENEFEAEERRTNT upon delivery, with some limited cases granting a credit
30HEQHAMEEHRTE - BN period of not more than 30 to 90 days. Ageing analysis of
FEBENRESTAOT ¢ accounts and bills receivable was as follows:
"e
Consolidated
—EERF —ZTTNF
2005 2004
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0Z90H 0 to 90 days 3,959 29,869
91H Z180H 91 to 180 days 3 1,376
181HZ=270H 181 to 270 days 15 497
2712 365H 271 to 365 days — —
i 38 365 H Over 365 days 478 2
4,455 31,744
B REREME Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful receivables (478) (651)
3,977 31,193
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17 BERBITEXR
R-_ZEZRF=A=1+—8  tkAKE
ERTEEERRZAEERARRZ
R1TER D 5I4716,080,0008 7T (==
=T mF 34,439,000/ 7T ) K&
13,049,000 Lk (Z T T M 4
13,645,000/ 7T) (AT#£30) -

R-_ZEZERF=A=1+—H A&EEZ
/e KIRITHFERA11,701,0008 7T (=
TEPOLE @ 42,448,0007%8 T) A B A
R ZEBETHERBMHEER LR
ZEHE  HEEXRPBRARRBITERE °

18 FHRITHEE

SRR RITER
RHRITER

AEBERTREFBSHINME
30 °

FBERBRTERGAPBEARES

B o
ZFr

19 BENERRRRE
ENERRREZERH AT -

0Z90H
91Z180H
181Z 2708
271%2365H
1826

17 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
As at 31st March 2005, bank deposits of the Group and the
Company of approximately HK$16,080,000 (2004:
HK$34,439,000) and HK$13,049,000 (2004: HK$13,645,000),
respectively, were pledged as collateral for the Group's
banking facilities respectively (Note 30).

As at 31st March 2005, cash and bank deposits of the Group
of approximately HK$11,701,000 (2004: HK$42,448,000)
were denominated in Chinese Renminbi, which is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market and its
exchange rate is determined by the People’s Bank of China.

18 SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

we

Consolidated
—EERF —EFENF
2005 2004
FHETT FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
Trust receipts bank loans 2,625 26,856
Short-term bank loans 21,735 24,570
24,360 51,426

Details of the Group's banking facilities are set out in Note 30.
All of the short-term bank loans were denominated in Chinese
Renminbi.

19 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE
Ageing analysis of accounts and bills payable was as follows:

®mE

Consolidated
—Z2ERHF —ZTTNF
2005 2004
F#ET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
0 to 90 days 18,272 86,032
91 to 180 days 93,467 36,927
181 to 270 days 8,079 56,354
271 to 365 days - 61,534
1 to 2 years 1,200 43,598
121,018 284,445
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20 EERIE

BEERBENANBEEEAEETEM X
17.5% (ZZZPULE : 17.5%) 5L 72 Bk
=E2HEE -

EEBEEE (X ERE RHBERR)
ZEBWT :

1]
18

&
Rz R (NBR) /FHAZBELERIR

FiR

R-_EERE=A=+—0 A£HEF
KRB BRI TEE E4922,734,0007%
T (ZZTEP4E ¢ 15,679,000 7T) © =
ERERFAREBE (BZEREBIEH
BEE)ZHEXE  ZSEUUER
Higte o

20

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%).

The movement on the deferred tax assets, arising primarily
from cumulative tax losses, is as follows:

®E
Consolidated

—2TEE - TTWEHF

2005 2004

F#ET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Beginning of year 4,483 —
Deferred taxation (charged)/
credited to profit and loss

account (4,483) 4,483

End of year - 4,483

As at 31st March 2005, the Group had an unprovided deferred
tax assets of approximately HK$22,734,000 (2004:
HK$15,679,000), primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward indefinitely.




Notes to the Accounts B B K 3F

21

22

g 7= 21 SHARE CAPITAL
g s Movements were:
—EERF —EFENF
2005 2004
g ¢=] H{E fi% 2 £k B HE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
FR FET F g FE T
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
ETE Authorised
(B mEEO0.10 (Ordinary shares
Bz TR of HK$0.10 each) 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
BEITREBR Issued and fully paid
(B ®EEO0.10 (Ordinary shares
BT ERAR) of HK$0.10 each):
F4 Beginning of year 1,596,384 159,638 1,564,503 156,450
A 17 R AR E Issue of shares upon
1T AR (D exercise of warrants
(K1 aF22) (Note 22) 206 21 681 68
HEE R Issue of shares for
BTG settlement of
payables — - 31,200 3,120
FR End of year 1,596,590 159,659 1,596,384 159,638
R EE 22 WARRANTS
g s Movements were:
AREFEE
ERTEE Number of warrants
Subscription F4
B{THH TEHE price per Beginning T FER
Date of issue Exercise period share of year Exercised End of year
BT F 17 F 17 F17
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
—TEE_FHA-+=H ZTEE-_FAT+NABE
23rd May 2002 e A =
18th June 2002 to
17th June 2005 0.10 312,216 (206) 312,010
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22

23

RREE
R-EE-_FRA-_+=0  ~A7E
B2 1749312,900,00017 BRI HE B4 T
HERR -  AEREBRESARTBRS
BE—MHREESE - BHRBESFR
TEEFEBAER  AJZESR0.10%E T
(A FHAE) LR ERE—REE. 107
T2 LB YR —_ZEE—F A+
NBEZZEZERAF A T+EHRAITE -
BE _ZERF=FA=1+—"HItFE
A v 206,000 RREZ (ZZZ T
F : 681,000 R HEE) BEEITFE N
B N F]206,000 (% 1 (ZZEZE M
F : 681,000k &) r RELDN A
21,0008 7L (ZZZ MM : 68,000/
JT) °

BRE
REBERNRA 2 BBRESS ([
gl ARFRARTAKEZ EE
g REA - BREIKKE (BREEAHR
TESENIFATES) URBARRZ
Bty MASBBTHERTARE L
B {0 1B 2 30% (17 {6 fE AR P 3 1T AR
MERIN - TEERBARRZESTE
BERSDEBEATIFRSERE
(ARRZBEOREHR TRRES A
EEMAXZMBR ARSI Z KT
B (ARRZBRORBEEELARTHE
BRERHMAEXZEETEHERS
PrERRR A FHUWTE + Kliii)
RRRZ B EEEK0.10ETT » #at
EID WM AERE —IRERE - MAA
B8R T 2 BRI AR ER IRRIT
f# e

22

23

WARRANTS (Cont’d)

On 23rd May 2002, the Company issued approximately
312,900,000 warrants to its shareholders on the basis of
one warrant for every five ordinary shares of the Company
at no charge. The warrants entitle the holders to subscribe in
cash for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at
a subscription price of HK$0.10 each (subject to adjustment)
and are exercisable between 18th June 2002 to 17th June
2005. During the year ended 31st March 2005, 206,000
warrants (2004: 681,000 warrants) were exercised to
subscribe for 206,000 shares (2004: 681,000 shares) of the
Company at a consideration of approximately HK$21,000
(2004: HK$68,000).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme (“the New
Scheme"”) under which it may grant options to any person
being an employee, agent, consultant or representative
(including executive directors and non-executive directors)
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject
to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time, excluding
for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.
The exercise price will be determined by the Company's Board
of Directors and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares quoted on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on the date of grant of the options; (ii)
the average closing prices of the Company's shares quoted
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares
of HK$0.10 each. The New Scheme was adopted to replace
an old scheme, with all options granted under the old scheme
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the old terms.
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23 ERE @

G

23 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont’d)

BREZEHNOT : Movements of share options were:
BREHA
ERTEE Number of share options
Subscription F4
¥ B H 1TEHE price per Beginning KM ER
Date of grant Exercise period share of year Lapsed End of year
BT F17 F 15
HK$ ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
—EETFLHA=H —ETE_F+H-HZE
3rd July 2000 —ET-ZEFNPA+H
1st October 2002
to 12th April 2010 0.360 19,850 (7,500) 12,350
—EETF+—HLEH —EE-F+—HN\BZE
7th November 2000 —E_ZFWA+—H
8th November 2002
to 12th April 2010 0.485 55,400 (13,000) 42,400
75,250 (20,500) 54,750
24 f#fE 24 RESERVES "
=)
Consolidated
Cumulative
REEMfRE foreign
K %E EXEE  Investment currency 2itER
Share Capital  revaluation  translation Accumulated A%
premium reserve reserve adlustments losses Total
TET FETL BT FETL FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZ=FNA—H As at 1st April 2003 11,099 2,700 (21,865) 153 (135,186 (143,099)
REEGER Loss attributable to
i shareholders = = = = (25,711) (25,711)
—BRERELTE Change in fair value of
£8) a long-term investment — — 1,451 = = 1,451
AR Investment revaluation
4l reserve transferred to
& profit and loss account
upon recognition of
impairment loss of
N a long-term investment — — 20,414 — - 20,414
ERLAE Translation adjustments — — — (48) — (48)
RZZTME As at 31st
=A=+-H March 2004 ,099 2,700 — 105 (160,897) (146,993)
REEGER Loss attributable to
i shareholders = = = = (10,443) (10,443)
—ERERENTE Change in fair value of
£5 a long-term investment - - 548 - - 548
LE-—BERAKE Realised upon disposal
mERRE of a long-term
EEEE investment — — (548) — — (548)
ERLAE Translation adjustments — — — (86) — (86)
R=2%5F As at 31st
ZA=1+-H March 2005 11,099 2,700 - 19 (171,340) (157,522)
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24 f#fE @ 24 RESERVES (Cont'd)
VNG
Company
REEMHGHE
RAEE Investment 2t ER
Share revaluation Accumulated “m
premium reserve losses Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZ=FNA—H As at 1st April 2003 11,099 (21,865) (141,013) (151,779)
RREGER Loss attributable to
shareholders — — (14,680) (14,680)
—HRAKEATFERY Change in fair value of
a long-term investment — 1,451 — 1,451
REA-BRARERNE Investment revaluation
BEMBREER reserve transferred to
FEEYEEER profit and loss account
upon recognition of
impairment loss of
a long-term investment — 20,414 — 20,414
RZZEENE=A=+—H As at 31st March 2004 11,099 — (155,693) (144,594)
RRELER Loss attributable to
shareholders — — (5,951) (5,951)
—HRAKEATFEEY Change in fair value of
a long-term investment — 548 — 548
AHE-—HRARE Realised upon disposal
MERZREEMGEE of a long-term investment — (548) — (548)

R-ZZEZRF=F=+-H As at 31st March 2005 11,099 - (161,644) (150,545)
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25

RERERERWME

(a)

U EEREEEMELE RS (a)
(RE) / MAFEHARMOT :

bR 35 Al 5 18
S A
B X H

MR B A
BlE&ENE
HEBTEEERE
A8 Uk 57 3% R AN 8 5

H &M B 2 A
ZEFER
HERE 2 F S

—HEREREEBRE

LEESEBAI KL
(B1]) i 7
7 &R
BNRE BER
H 1 78 U 3R TR R,
Bazamd ()

1B B K R R O

EAEZFREEE L)
g b

H {th F& < FXIB 3E 0

FEET & (&2 10

LG/ OER

25 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

follows:

o aF
Note

Loss before taxation

Interest income

Interest expense

Dividend income

Depreciation of fixed assets

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Amortisation of website
development costs

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries,
net 25(c)

Gain on disposal of investments,
net

Impairment loss of an investment

Operating (loss)/profit before
working capital changes

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in deposits for
purchase of inventories

Decrease in accounts and bills
receivable

(Decrease )/increase in accounts
and bills payable

Increase in other payables

Increase in accruals

Increase in receipts in advance

KB FTEA 24 () Net cash (outflow)/inflow

RN F

generated from operations

Reconciliation of loss before taxation to net cash
(outflow)/inflow generated from operations was as

—ETRE —ZEETMF
2005 2004
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
(4,497) (25,042)
(580) (657)
5,056 7.922
(659) (421)
1,016 1,069

87 118

27 892

63 —

(911) —

— 20,414

(398) 4,295
35,850 24,147
5,877 6,624
5,749 (40,089)
23,914 6,232
(148,697) 52,442
10,343 19
4,018 210
11,182 1,674
(52,162) 55,554
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25 SZEHERERNMT 25 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(&) (Cont’d)
(b) BELEFOMET : (b)  Analysis of changes in financing was as follows:

BAE 55 5
% 12 % 8 RITEE
Share capital Short-term
and share bank
premlum borrowings
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZEZE=FMA—H As at 1st April 2003 167,549 57134

B 17 8 R AR M 5 T & AT AR 17 Issue of shares upon exercise
(Kiaz21) of warrants (Note 21) 68 —

E B8 R R TR D Issue of shares for settlement
(Kt#£21) of payables (Note 21) 3,120 =
it AS HRER 1T m/\ New short-term bank loans — 68,480

EERHRITER Repayment of short-term

bank loans — (62,857)

EREWERITERUR D IFRE Net decrease in trust receipts
bank loans — (11,331)
R-ZEENMFE=/=+— As at 31st March 2004 170,737 51,426

B 175 SR AR M 75 T B 1T AR T Issue of shares upon exercise
(Ktat21) of warrants (Note 21) 21 —
FIBEHRITER New short-term bank loans — 6,615

EEEHRITER Repayment of short-term

bank loans — (9,450)

EREWIERITER R D F 58 Net decrease in trust receipts
bank loans — (24,231)
R=ZZERF=H=+—H As at 31st March 2005 170,758 24,360




o i 5 B AR~ Al W 5 3R 2004/05

Notes to the Accounts Bk B K 5%

25 SZEHERERNMT 25 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(%) (Cont'd)
(c) HENBAF : (c) Disposal of subsidiaries:
HENBRARZHBOT ¢ Details of disposal of subsidiaries were as follows:
—2EEEF —ETEF
) 2005 2004
B o FET FAETT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LEEEFHE Net assets disposed of
EE&E Fixed assets 470 —
FE Inventories 296 —
BEES Deposits for purchase
of inventories 56,185 —
FENRIE Fek Prepayments, deposits and
H {th fE Wg 3R IR other receivables 501 —
B U AR 3R % E R Accounts and bills receivable 3,302 —
He RkHA Cash and other bank
RITHER deposits 2,890 —
BRERREE Accounts and bills payable (14,730) —
H {th FE 1 5B Other payables (9,053) —
EEtBE Accruals (466) —
T8 W BB Receipts in advance (35,991) —
P& & % 18 Taxation payable (311) —
BEFH Net assets 3,093 —
& BT 1S 58 Total consideration 3,030 —
& 2 FEE Loss on disposal, net 25(a) 63 —
A TERS : Satisfied by:
H {th & Uk ZX A (i) Other receivables (i) 1,536 —
BE Cash 1,494 _
3,030 —
Hiat - Note:
(i) R-ETZRF=A=+—8 & (i) The outstanding purchase consideration was included as
RBEBZHEME kaEE%EZ”FE% other receivables as at 31st March 2005, and was settled
1 E b fE U 5h8 KIB A subsequently.
BEHEBEE -
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70

25 SZEHERERNMT 25 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(&) (Cont’d)
(c) HENWBAR (&) (c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd)
—2EEEF —ZETNF
2005 2004
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
& W B A Al Zfﬁ%m)\ Analysis of net cash inflow in respect
FEATIMT of disposal of subsidiaries
i & FT 15 3H Cash consideration received 1,494 —
B HEZIRE NRIEE  Less: Cash and cash equivalents
(ERERS disposed of (2,890) —
HEMRBARFRERE - Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,
HhHEZRE net of cash disposed of (1,396) —

HE—ZEZTRAF=A=+—HL
FE HEZHBARALREER
AR T #7192,336,000% T (=&
TP 4 : 382,277,000/ T) 2 &
¥E N 45,176,000 T (ZEE
P4 : 5,658,000/ T) < A% R fE
&8 -

For the year ended 31 March 2005, the disposed
subsidiaries contributed approximately HK$192,336,000
(2004: HK$382,277,000) of turnover and approximately
HK$5,176,000 (2004: HK$5,658,000) of loss attributable
to shareholders of the Group.

(d) RekBFLEFEIEAR : (d) Cash and cash equivalents:
R-ZZEERAF=A=+—H " & Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and other bank
e RAESEFEBREERRRERE deposits of approximately HK$13,263,000 as at 31st

R 1T 1E 5 4913,263,0007 7T (=
Z TP : 55,433,000 70) ©

March 2005 (2004: HK$55,433,000).
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(a)

FESE

AEES=ZEEBEKHLE — i
MBS  HBREREEZER -
WM E S (B ERmmEEM
EEXERA - HBREESSEAR
BMERERBEEVES 2EE
WA - REEREBSE2RA
FEEBBWA - HEBLEZD
HranT

26

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Primary segment

The Group is organised into three major business
segments — steel trading, procurement services and
investment holding. The steel trading business segment
derives revenue from the sale of goods. The
procurement services business segment derives
commission income from procurement and online steel
trading services. The investment holding business
segment derives revenue from dividend income.
Analysis by business segment is as follows:

EEETE — YWIN  Turnover — Sales to
RPEHE external customers
DEEE Segment results
H A U A Other revenue
HERE Gain on disposal of
Z AW investments, net
HERE QA Loss on disposal of
2 FEE subsidiaries, net
APELEER  Unallocated corporate
expenses
18 & A Operating profit
MIsE R Finance costs
18 Taxation
BFig B RE D # Loss after taxation but
MRS AIEE  before minority interests
BE Assets
NREE Segment assets
ADMEE Unallocated assets
=R Liabilities
DEAE Segment liabilities
APRAE Unallocated liabilities
NG ET Capital expenditure
& & Depreciation and amortisation

—EERF
2005

HMES RBR% REZR
Steel Procurement Investment ]
trading services holding Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
854,564 5,121 - 859,685
(1,654) 604 (62) (1,112)
578 - 661 1,239
- - 9N 9N
(63) - - (63)
(416)
559
(5,056)
(5,946)
(10,443)
164,155 353 780 165,288
460
165,748
(163,235) - (71) (163,306)
(305)
(163,611)
191 5 780 976
1,016 27 - 1,043
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26 DEER ® 26 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(a) EESE (&) (a) Primary segment (Cont’d)
—ETMF
2004
WM ES R BEER
Steel  Procurement Investment FERS]
trading services holding Total
FA& T FA&T FA& T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R — YAHN  Turnover — Sales to
BEFIHE external customers 1,416,236 13,207 — 1,429,443
DIEEE Segment results (2,667) 5,757 (52) 3,038
Halg A Other revenue 657 — 421 1,078
—ERHKE Impairment loss of a
BEEE long-term investment — — (20,414) (20,414)
AOEMEBR  Unallocated corporate
expenses (822)
KL EE Operating loss (17.120)
BB R Finance costs (7.922)
] Taxation (889)
BFig B RE D E Loss after taxation but
PR S AR before minority interests (25,931)
g Assets
DEEEE Segment assets 360,392 859 25,536 386,787
KO EE Unallocated assets 400
387,187
=R Liabilities
HBEAE Segment liabilities (373,448) (16) (50) (373,514)
ROBAE Unallocated liabilities (1,028)
(374,542)
BEARRL Capital expenditure 1,021 17 — 1,038
e N Depreciation and amortisation 1,069 892 — 1,961
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26 DEER ®

(b)

REDE

G

26 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Secondary segment

AEEZEBEHEFINREBER
TEAM - HE S EXE

TIRBHM B 5

EmfEZBN

Ho - BRFE AR5 P AE 1T 2 AR 75 AT B
wE - HERERAZETFAE
wEREHEBRAZER &
HMEEZMBHEMETE - Kith
BOBZAOMMT

BEE — HH

BEPHE

o e
DRERE

AOEREXER

«

S

3 F

e

BE
EWNEES

BEE — HH

BEPHE

DEEREA

AOEREXER

REER
BE
BARX

Turnover — Sales to
external customers

Segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Operating profit
Assets

Capital expenditure

Turnover — Sales to
external customers

Segment results

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Operating loss
Assets

Capital expenditure

(b)

The Group's activities are conducted predominantly in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Turnover by
geographical segments is determined on the basis of
the destination of shipment of goods for steel trading,
location of service performed for procurement services,
location of sellers for online commission income, and
location of the short-term/long-term investments for
dividend income. Analysis by geographical segment is

as follows:
—BEHEF
2005
B R
BB Mainland Hit PR
Hong Kong China Others Total
FHETT FHETT FHETT FHETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
15,280 844,405 — 859,685
(586) 4,162 (2,601) 975
(416)
559
1,891 163,373 484 165,748
61 910 5 976
—EETF
2004
FR B A e

BB Mainland Hth FERE
Hong Kong China Others Total
FAET FAET FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
39,029 1,390,414 — 1,429,443
(21,072) 11,678 (6,904) (16,298)
(822)
(17120)
49,393 311,808 25,986 387,187
260 759 19 1,038
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RIKEEHE
AEBERHERERESE-HAE
VRFEAEBEZREIEA RS ([
BEErall) - ZEtE s —AREHKE
g - RIEREEFE  AEEREREE
EEBARREEFM (EERBHMER
BERGEF) 2 —RR5% - BuEENE
B28AHRLERS1,0008 T K EEE
SMERTIEB B B -

WPB A2 AR AREASETE
A E 8 A B 5K & B 2 AR IRET &K -
BEREEARHEHN6%E20%HR -
MAREBIZZEHFEH14%E22.5%H
R BREEHF  BAXNEAER
BASHERNRRERN - ZFEREHER
REtEIAA B RRKEES I H2EEN

HE-_TZTRE=-_A=+T—HILFE
AEE M EARKRESETE 2 HRBELD
£231,000% 7T (ZZZ M4 : 300,000
BIT) o

ERBENRE
REEAWEZE TR ARHEERL
ENZAERBEHNMT :

JE 5 7R 0B
— RE1F
— B1F M RBLHF

27

28

PENSION SCHEMES

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
generally at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for
its employees in Mainland China. The employees contribute
approximately 6% to 20% of their basic salaries, while the
Group contributes approximately 14% to 22.5% of such
salaries and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond these
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

During the year ended 31st March 2005, the aggregate
amount of the Group's contributions to the aforementioned
schemes was approximately HK$231,000 (2004:
HK$300,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Total commitments payable under various non-cancellable
operating agreements in respect of rented premises are
analysed as follows:

o)

Consolidated
—EERF —ZEETMF
2005 2004
FET FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Amounts payable
— Not later than one year 705 683
— Later than one year and not

later than five years 322 572
1,027 1,255




Notes to the Accounts Bk B [

il

X ] m 5 3R 2004/05

G

29

30

31

ZREE

R-_ZEZRF=A=+—H &KARE
MIBTTREMBARREZEITEER
N BIFE 1R 988,725,000/ 5L (Z T E
PU4E : 146,545,000/ 7T) (A17£30) °
AARIZEERAEBE 2 EREBET
CRZSERCFBEREER)  MEL
Ep =R

RITME
R-ZEERF=A=1+—H  KREEK
BZRRT2EL  BERRESIBMEZ
IR1TRL & 48 %E 488,125,000 7T (==
ZT PO 1 159,155,000/ 7T) » AR H I
AEFE 2= E4963,765,000/8 T (==
T4 : 69,691,000 7C) - ZE@E
LATR B 75 S AEHR 4R

(i) AEERAQARZEEMRITT
o RI#716,080,0008 T (—EE
g4 : 34,439,000/% ) &
13,049,000 L (Z T W 4F -
13,645,000 7T) (Afat17) :

(i) REEFUERTERZHEFE
ZIEFEER (BaE15) « R

(i) ANRBREZRRER (Hi£29) -

HERRERE

BERK R-FTAFHEATNAE -
ARBZEEEEER KRBT IR
FIRE FREU T RGRBGAEEX
% FAFEEZERTIABRRLLE

(i) BRAEABIELAT :

e BARRTI00KRETEEE
0108 T2 EBREH A —
REREE10.08 7T 24 6
BB REERNE BT
EETEHERD 2HER
7X9.99% T - B ERE T
AEHERMDZEERSRK
10.07%8 L HR Z T #X0.017%8
oG

e RIXBINHEBEZ2EREME
0.0V B2 ¥ LMz - LA
MEARBEEBRAERRK Z
400,000,000 7T + &

29

30

31

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2005, the Company had provided
guarantees of approximately HK$88,725,000 (2004:
HK$146,545,000) to banks in respect of the banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries (Note 30). The Company’s Directors
and the Group’s management anticipate that no material
liabilities will arise from such guarantees which arose in the
ordinary course of business.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st March 2005, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$88,125,000 (2004:
HK$159,155,000) from several banks for overdrafts, loans,
and trade financing. Unused facilities as at the same date
amounted to approximately HK$63,765,000 (2004:
HK$69,691,000). These facilities were secured by:

(i)  pledge of the Group's and the Company’s bank deposits
of approximately HK$16,080,000 (2004: HK$34,439,000)
and HK$13,049,000 (2004: HK$13,645,000), respectively
(Note 17);

(i) inventories held under trust receipts bank loan
arrangements (Note 15); and

(iii) guarantees provided by the Company (Note 29).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, on 19th May 2005, the Company's
Board announced that it would put forward to the Company's
shareholders to approve, subject to conditions, the following
items at an upcoming special general meeting:

(i) A capital reorganisation, including the following:

o consolidate the Company’'s every 100 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each into one consolidated
share of HK$10.0 and thereafter reduce the
Company's issued share capital by way of
cancellation of the paid-up capital to the extent of
HK$9.99 on each issued consolidated share such
that the par value of all the issued consolidated
shares would be reduced from HK$10.0 each to
HK$0.01 each;

o increase in the Company'’s authorised share capital
back to its original amount of HK$400,000,000, by
the creation of additional new ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each; and
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EEREREE ®)
0 (&)

o HHARAT ZEIRMHE
fE##911,100,0007 TC °

15 LA _E BTt 2 B ek A% AN R wE 8H A%
DRERERSEREBREAEARAD
RIZBARBRE  WEEED R
49 159,500,000 7T & %
11,100,000/ vt + Bl & #* 4
170,600,000 7T + A{EREA L

AR _ZEERF=A=+—HZ
Z2:HEE#161,600,0007 7T °

31 31

(i)

BEARRARR R EMETR
$Eﬁé#ﬁﬁ A - AE
f%0.15668 L2 RBERE T
om%ﬁz%h ARalKEE
& # #42,500,000% £ ° Van
Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited -

R-_ZEZRF=ZA=+—HBH#AH
$@75%ﬁ&$mm9%z£
TR - BEERE -

B FETIRAERR - LAGRKR
R HE(B0.1566/8 7T 3 1T E 1%0.01
7 LA $£63,856,9600 T E =
(North Asia Strategic Acquisition
Corp. R BEIFRLAE) - EUEE
#310,000,0007 7T °

(ii) (ii)

(iii) (i)

%% {7 ® 120,000,000/ T 2 A #&
HX&B“@TT%?"’M_E (North
Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp.
&.A\fiﬁi) o LEH BN E

Al Z T A8 0.1566/8 7T 2 ¥l T #&
%F(T%mﬁ)%ﬁ%}i?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
0.O1B T zARAERR - ¥
EREERARARZZEZTLF T
:Hﬁ?ﬁéﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂé £ E W
EHERZ2HHE D HAER 2
BEF o

ZNYNCIEZE 8
ZRBR A

32 fRE#HE
HEBR-ZRAFAANBREEE
it f -

(iv) (iv)

(v) B AL TR RS (v)

32

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

(Cont'd)

° cancel the Company's entire share premium
reserve of approximately HK$11.1 million.

The credits arising from the aforementioned capital
reduction of approximately HK$159.5 million and from
the cancellation of the share premium reserve of
approximately HK$11.1 million, totalling approximately
HK$170.6 million, would be transferred to the
Company's contributed surplus account which will be
used to set off against the Company's accumulated
losses which amounted to approximately HK$161.6
million as at 31st March 2005.

An offer to existing shareholders to subscribe new
shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.1566 each, on the basis of one new share for
holder of one share after the aforementioned capital
reorganisation. The Company would raise an aggregate
sum of approximately HK$2.5 million. Such an offer is
underwritten by Van Shung Chong (B.V.l.) Limited, a
substantial shareholder holding approximately 18.9% of
the Company's equity interest at 31st March 2005.

Issue an aggregate of 63,856,960 shares of HK$0.01
each, after the aforementioned capital reorganisation,
to third parties (North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp.
and Mr. Moses Kwok Tai Tsang) at a subscription price
of HK$0.1566 each, raising a total of approximately
HK$10.0 million.

Issue convertible and redeemable bonds to third parties
(North Asia Strategic Acquisition Corp. and Mr. Moses
Kwok Tai Tsang) at face value of HK$20.0 million. These
bonds are non-interest bearing and can be converted
into the Company's ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.1566 each (subject
to adjustments) at any time, or have the right to request
the Company to redeem the whole or in part of the
outstanding bonds from December 2007 to the date
which is five years after the date of issue.

The Company’s name will be changed to North Asia
Strategic Holdings Limited.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS
The accounts were approved by the board of directors on
9th June 2005.







